ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 13, 2016
10: 02 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair

Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair

Senat or Charlie Huggins (via tel ephone)
Senator Bill Welechowski (via tel ephone)

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MQuire
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 123
"An Act relating to the penalty for the use of electronic
devices while driving."

- HEARD & HELD

SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 91

"An Act relating to crimnal |aw and procedure; relating to
controlled substances; relating to probation; relating to
sentencing; establishing a pretrial services program wth
pretrial services officers in the Departnment of Corrections;
relating to permanent fund dividends; relating to electronic
nonitoring;, relating to penalties for violations of nunicipal
or di nances; relating to parole; relating to correctional

restitution centers; relating to comunity work service;
relating to revocation, term nation, suspension, cancellation,
or restoration of a driver's |Ilicense; relating to the

di squalification of persons convicted of <certain felony drug
offenses from participation in the food stanp and tenporary
assi stance prograns; relating to the duties of the comm ssioner
of corrections; anmending Rules 6, 32, 32.1, 38, 41, and 43,
Alaska Rules of Crimnal Procedure, and repealing Rules 41(d)
and (e), Alaska Rules of Crimnal Procedure; and providing for
an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

SENATE STA COWM TTEE -1- February 13, 2016



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 123
SHORT TI TLE: USE OF ELECTRONI C DEVI CES WHI LE DRI VI NG
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MEYER

01/ 19/ 16 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 8/ 16

01/ 19/ 16 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 16 (S) STA, JUD

02/ 13/ 16 (S) STA AT 10: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 91

SHORT TITLE: OWNI BUS CRI ME LAW & PROCEDURE: CORRECTI ONS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) COGHI LL

03/ 25/ 15 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 25/ 15 (S) STA, JUWD, FIN

04/ 02/ 15 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 02/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 02/ 15 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 03/ 16 (S) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED- REFERRAL S
02/ 03/ 16 (S) STA, JUWD, FIN

02/ 13/ 16 (S) STA AT 10: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR KEVI N MEYER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 123.

NANCY MEADE, General Counsel

Al aska Court System

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 123.

GREGORY RAZO, Chair

Al aska Crimnal Justice Conm ssion (ACIO

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the Annual Report of the Al aska
Crimnal Justice Comm ssion.

BRENDA STANFI LL, Victim Advocacy Representative

Al aska Crimnal Justice Conm ssion

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Descri bed her experience on the conm ssion.

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 2- February 13, 2016



RI CK ALLEN, Director

O fice of Public Advocacy

Departnent of Adm nistration

Pal mer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided input on crimnal reform

MARLENE MOTO KARL, representing herself
Deering, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91.

TARRI HARROLD- JONES, representing herself
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91.

BUTCH MOORE, representing hinself and his wife, C ndy More
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91.

VI CKI WALLNER, President

Stop Vall ey Thieves

Mat - Su Val | ey, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 91.

ANDREA ROBI NSON, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91.

SHAWN JESSIP 11, representing hinself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91.

KARA NELSON, Director

Haven House

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91.

CHRI S NETTLES, President

Nat i onal Federation of |ndependent Busi nesses

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 91.

DARRYL JONES, Corporate Counse

Pi oneer Peak Monitoring

Wasi |l a, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 91.

TERRI A WALTERS, representing herself

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 13, 2016



Pal mer, Al aska
POSI Tl ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 91.

KIM WH TAKER, Menber

R E. A L. About Addiction

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91.

MAUDE BLAI R, President

Al aska Federation of Natives

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91.

ATHENA SI NGSAAS, representing hersel f
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 91.

M KE COONS, representing hinself
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 91.

TI MOTHY HALE, representing hinself
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91.

DELI CE CALCOTE, representing herself
Sutton, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91.

HELEN SI MMONDS, representing herself
Barrow, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91.

BARBARA CHALENDER, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91.

M CHAEL JEFFERY, representing hinself
Barrow, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91.

M KE LUNDE, Menber

Fai r banks Wl | ness Court System

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91.

DONNA BALDW N, representing herself

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- February 13, 2016



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

NATHAN LOCKWOOD, representing hinself
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

ETHAN KNUTHSON, representing hinself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

CARA DURR, Director of Public Engagenent
Food Bank of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

KATHLEEN VAN VOORHI' S, Director

Food Bank of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

PATRI Cl A LANE, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

HELEN TRAI NOR, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

W LLI AM DI CKERSON, Al ummi

Al aska Therapeutic Court

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

LANCE HANES, Al umi

Al aska Therapeutic Court

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

ERNI E GOVEZ, Al umi

Al aska Therapeutic Court

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

JAMES KRUGVAN, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5-

91.

91.

91.

91.

91.

91.

91.

91.

91.

91.

SB 91.

February 13, 2016



CATHLEEN MCLAUGHLI N, Director

Partners Reentry Center

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91.

GRACE HERRI NGTON, Enpl oyee

Partners Reentry Center

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91.

VI NCE HOLTON, Executive Director

Al aska Monitoring & Drug Testing LLC

Fai r banks Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91.

MARY NANUWAK, representing herself
Bet hel , Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91, wi th changes.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

10: 02: 35 AM

CHAIR BILL STOLTZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 10:02 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Coghill and Chair Stoltze.

10: 02: 51 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE reviewed the agenda and said public testinony
would not be closed and no action would be taken on the bills
because the commttee does not have a quorum

SB 123- USE OF ELECTRONI C DEVI CES VWHI LE DRI VI NG

10: 03: 57 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consi derati on of SB 123.

10: 04: 06 AM

SENATOR KEVIN MEYER, Al aska State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska,
sponsor of SB 123, said that Anchorage had recently passed an
ordinance to lower the penalty of texting while driving from a
class A msdeneanor to a $500 fine. He said SB 123 proposes to
do the sane statewide that allows |aw enforcenent officers to
issue tickets inmediately, resulting in a stronger deterrent. He
added that no other aspect of current |aw was changed by SB 123.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 13, 2016



SENATOR MEYER said the bill wll also prevent the |ong
m sdeneanor process and cost of prosecuting individuals using
el ectroni c devices while driving.

10: 06: 35 AM

He continued to explain that wunder current Ilaw, only 20
individuals in Anchorage were cited over four years and only
four resulted in a conviction. He described the ticketing
process under SB 123. He noted that SB 123 has two zero-fisca
notes. He opined that the bill will save noney and deter a very
dangerous activity.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that the Minicipality of Anchorage changed
many of their traffic fines as a revenue neasure. He asked
Senat or Meyer for his opinion.

SENATOR MEYER answered that the intent of the bill is not to
make noney, but for safety and to save noney for the state by
elimnating the crimnal court process.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if there will be nore enforcenent.

SENATOR MEYER answered yes. He asserted that enforcement will be
easier to enforce and conpared the process to witing a traffic
ticket. He enphasized that the intent is not to generate noney
for the state.

CHAIR STOLTZE said he had heard the current texting penalty was
conparable to a first-time DU and officers were inclined to
give a warning for first-tine texting offenders.

10: 10: 01 AM

SENATOR MEYER agreed with Chair Stoltze. He spoke of other | aws,
such as a mnor in possession, that are also not being enforced
and the possibility that it would be changed from a m sdeneanor
to a fine.

CHAIR STOLTZE commented that if texting leads to bodily injury
there are nore severe consequences.

SENATOR MEYER agreed. He said the current law states that if a
person who is texting causes a death or great harmit results in
a separate penalty.

SENATOR COCGHILL noted that in the bill, aggravation ranps up the
penalty into a felony;, for exanple, if a person uses an

SENATE STA COWM TTEE -7- February 13, 2016



el ectronic device and causes an accident, the penalty is quite
high. He agreed with ticketing for a sinple violation.

SENATOR MEYER noted a handout that shows the various penalties
inthe bill.

CHAI R STOLTZE pointed out that a bail schedule offense requires
action by the courts.

10: 14: 08 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI j oi ned the conmttee via tel ephone.

SENATOR MEYER specified that traffic tickets are payable by mai
and he wondered if that provision should be included in the
bill.

CHAI R STOLTZE commented that SB 123 is a deterrent.

SENATOR MEYER concurred with Chair Stoltze and noted that people
of every age text and the problemis serious.

10: 16: 53 AM

NANCY MEADE, Ceneral Counsel, Alaska Court System Anchorage,
Al aska, answered questions related to SB 123. She expl ai ned t hat
if the Legislature requests that the Al aska Suprenme Court put
the offense onto a bail schedule, a fine schedule, it can be
di sposed of by mailing in the fine amount. She used a speeding
ticket as an exanple. She said the proposed change contained in
SB 123 could be put onto a bail schedule. She added that traffic
offenses can be put on a bail schedule because there is a
statute already in place that provides for that. She said should
SB 123 pass, the Departnment of Public Safety (DPS) would work
with the Alaska Court System to request it be done and the
Suprenme Court would add it to the existing traffic bal
schedul e.

10: 18: 45 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the Legislature would have an advisory
role if the executive branch and the court don't agree to do it.

M5. MEADE specified that the Legislature's role is to say what
the fine amount would be. She added that if the legislative
intent is that it goes on a bail schedule, her experience is
that DPS woul d propose it and the court would do it.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if the Legislature's role is advisory.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 13, 2016



M5. MEADE replied that the Legislature could state definitively
that sonething nust be on a bail schedule and the Suprenme Court
has historically done so.

10: 20: 16 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE postponed public testinony and held SB 123 in
comittee.

10: 21: 14 AM
At ease.

SB 91- OWNI BUS CRI M LAW & PROCEDURE; CORRECTI ONS

10: 22: 32 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consideration of SB 91. He noted it
was the second hearing of the bill and changes to the bill were

made resulting in a sponsor substitute.

10: 24: 59 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL, sponsor, provided an overview of the sponsor
substitute for SB 91, which contains suggestions from the
Crimnal Justice Commi ssion. He noted that he introduced SB 91
| ast session.

10: 27: 17 AM

He read fromthe foll ow ng sponsor statenent:
Senate Bill 91 inplenments proven practices to reduce
recidivism keep Al askans safe, hold offenders

accountabl e, and control corrections spending.

| ncreased spending on prisons has not brought Al askans
greater public safety: nearly two out of every three
inmates who | eave prison return to prison within three
years. The high rate of recidivism has significantly
i ncreased Departnent of Corrections operating costs to
$324 million in FY 2016, and spurred the opening of
the Goose Creek Correctional Center, costing the state
$240 million in construction funds.

10: 30: 03 AM

Seeking a better public safety return on our state’'s
corrections spending, the Legislature established the
Alaska Crimnal Justice Comm ssion. The Conmmi ssion
i ncl uded | egi sl ators, j udges, | aw enf or cenent

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 13, 2016



of ficers, prosecutors, def ender s, corrections
officials, and nenbers representing crinme victins and
Al aska Natives. The Comm ssion spent over a Yyear
conducting an exhaustive review of the state’'s
pretrial, sent enci ng, corrections, and conmunity
supervi sion data and systens.

SB 91 incorporates the Comm ssion’s Recomendati ons.
The Comm ssion developed a package of consensus

recommendations that wll reduce the state’'s daily
prison population by 21 percent over the next 10
years, saving the state $424 mllion.

SB 91 ains to: inplenent evidence-based pretrial
practices by expanding the use of citations in lieu of
arrest for |ower-|evel nonvi ol ent  of f enses; make

changes to bail practices to focus pretrial release
decisions nore on risk than on ability to pay; focus
prison beds on serious and violent offenders by
di verting nonvi ol ent m sdeneanor of f enders to
alternatives; revise drug crinme penalties; adjust
dollar amounts for felony property crines to account
for inflation; realign sentence ranges in statute,
expanding and stream ining parole; and incentivize sex
of fenders to conplete treatnent progranmm ng.

10: 32: 47 AM

Strengthen probation and parole supervision by
standardi zing sanctions for violations of probation
and parole conditions to ensure they are swft,

certain, and proportional; establish incentives to
conply with supervision conditions; focus treatnent
resour ces on hi gh- needs of f enders; i nprove

opportunities for successful reentry by offering
l[imted licenses to eligible revoked offenders; create
a reentry program within t he Depart ment of
Corrections; and opt out of the federal ban on food
stanps for people convicted of drug crines.

10: 35:18 AM

Rei nvest a portion of the savings from these reforns
into evidence-based practices designed to inprove
public safety, <control corrections populations, and
reduce recidivism including supervision services,

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- February 13, 2016



victins’ servi ces, vi ol ence prevention, t r eat ment
services, and reentry services.

10: 38: 01 AM

Cost of Doing Nothing: $169 MIlion. Al aska' s prison
popul ation grew 27 percent in the |last decade, nearly
three times faster than the resident population; at
this rate, the Departnent of Corrections projects the
need to house an additional 1,416 inmates by 2024,
which will cost the state at least $169 mllion in new
spending. Wth the disappointing recidivismrates and
public safety outcones the state has been achi eving,
the cost of doing nothing is too high.

10: 40: 31 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL addressed key findings of the Al aska Crim nal
Justice Comm ssion and their reconmendations in three areas:
pretrial detention, post-conviction inprisonnent, and conmunity
corrections. He said the pretrial population has grown, their
detention lasts longer, 75 percent are non-violent offenders,
and 20 percent have technical violations.

He noted that 21 reforns the comm ssion suggested are projected
to reduce the prison population by 21 percent over the next 10
years.

10: 43: 46 AM
He addressed a guide that highlighted "Category," "Policy,"
"Rec" and "Bill Sections.”

CHAIR STOLTZE asked i f the recommendati ons refl ect t he
conmi ssion's suggested refornmns.

SENATOR COGHI LL answered yes. He noted that the bill has 142
Sections. He reviewed how to cross reference the bill using the
gui de.

10: 46: 34 AM

He nentioned the pretrial category and the policy recomended
called "citation versus arrest.”" Aso included under that

category is risk-based rel ease deci si on- naki ng.

He pointed out that version N is before the committee and is
post ed on BASI S.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- February 13, 2016



SENATOR COGHI LL noted that sentencing issues deal Wi th
m sdeneanors, controlled substances, felony theft threshold,
presunptive ranges, discretionary parole/admnistrative parole
geriatric parole, and sex-offender treatnent credit. Wth
m sdeneanors, the question was how to handle them nore cost
effectively.

10: 48: 42 AM

He related that the community supervision category includes,
graduated sanctions/incentives, cap in technical violation
stays, probation earned credit, mnmaxi mum probation terns, good-
time on E M, and CRC s hal fway housi ng.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that there was a great deal of criticism
regarding inmate treatnment in halfway houses. He asked if
hal f way houses woul d be addressed.

10: 51: 07 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL replied that he thought the bill would help
because it puts requirements on DOC. He agreed that the oversite
of hal fway houses was | ax.

CHAI R STOLTZE opined that there was |ess professionalism shown
i n hal fway houses than by correctional officers in prisons.

SENATOR COGHI LL agreed and noted correctional officers have to
deal with overcrowding and the bill should help that situation
and i nprove prisoner accountability neasures.

He nentioned that he has also been working on the limted
driver's license and admnistrative |I|icense revocations. He
stressed the inportance of allow ng people to be productive once
they have served their jail tinme. He said there should be a way
to obtain a driver's license by "review and renew." He added
that they have found sonme ways to better administrate |icense
revocati ons.

10: 54: 23 AM

He addressed other itens he has been working on, the re-entry
program found in Section 130, and equitable pay for community
wor k servi ce.

He stated that in response to a question by Chair Stoltze, an
inflation adjustnment element is recommended in the property
crinmes section of the bill.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- February 13, 2016



SENATOR COGHILL said he is also working on limting pre-trail
credit to 120 days.

10: 57: 52 AM

GREGORY RAZO, Chair, Alaska Crimnal Justice Comm ssion (ACIO),
presented the Annual Report of the Alaska Crimnal Justice
Comm ssion. He pointed out that ACIC s recomendati ons were made
after substantial time, effort, and study by experts on Al aska
crimnal justice. He said nenbers of ACIC are the Conm ssioners
of Public Safety and Corrections, Attorney General Richards,
menbers of the Superior Court and District Court, Brenda
Stanfill representing victins and victins' advocates, Jeff
Jessee fromthe Al aska Mental Health Trust, hinself, and others.

He said after seven nonths, and wth support of the Pew
Charitable Trust, ACIC cane up with the recommendations in SB
91. He credited Senator Coghill and Representative Keller, both
non-voting nenbers, wth their support. He called SB 91 a
substantial systens analysis of changes to the Alaska Crim nal
Justice System

11: 00: 08 AM

He specified the reasons changes in the system were needed: the
state is currently wasting noney, recidivismrates are very high
and public safety is not inproving, and those in prison are not
being "corrected."

He explained that the comm ssion was split into three working
groups. The pre-trial prison population working group exan ned
who was in that population and why it has grown by 81 percent
over the |last decade. He shared statistics related to the anount
of noney spent on non-violent prisoners, noting that a |arge
part of SB 91 deals with this popul ation.

He related that the felony prison population has increased by 31
percent over the |ast decade. He said in 2014, 47 percent of
post-revocation supervision violators stayed for nore than 30
days, 28 percent longer than three nonths behind bars. He said,
in response to the request by the Legislature in August of 2015
to reduce the ampunt spent on the Criminal Justice System by 25
percent, the ACIC set that as a goal; their recomendations
woul d reduce the cost of inprisonnent over the next ten years by
$424 mllion. Currently, DOC alone costs $360 mllion a year. He
revealed that in 2017, the Crimnal Justice System will run out
of prison space if nothing changes.

11: 04: 55 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- February 13, 2016



MR. RAZO addressed where the prisoners are taking up beds. He
said there is currently no systematic risk assessnment for judges
to use to determne whether a person is a danger to public
safety; having the tools to assess that will help to reduce a
substantial nunber of pre-trial detainees. He pointed out that
pre-trial detention for |onger than 24 hours can lead to worse
outcones for lowrisk offenders. He shared a story about how
those who are repeatedly jailed are nore likely to commt
crimnal offenses upon release. He pointed out that there is no
bail system that allows for anything but the posting of noney,
currently. He mintained that wunsecured bail could be as
ef fective as posting noney.

11: 07: 24 AM

He turned to post-conviction recommendations in the bill. He
said there are a nunber of recommendations and they focus on
reducing the length of prison stays based upon the evidence that
came before the comm ssion. He stressed the need for conmunity
corrections because an increase in the supervision of those
com ng out of prison can result in nore public safety.

He concl uded t hat t he commi Sssi on cane up with 21
recommendati ons, but the nunmber one recommendation is that the
state needs to be spending noney on high risk offenders. He

asserted that noney nust be spent where it will produce the best
outcones. He enphasized that the report is "a justice re-
i nvestnment recomendation.” He enphasized focusing limted

resources on treatnent and prevention.

11: 11: 37 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE thanked M. Razo. He voiced concern about having
| aw enforcenent on the conm ssi on.

SENATOR COGHI LL countered that having Oficer Ray Beck on the
commi ssion was invaluable. He noted that the bill is a work in
progress and all stakehol ders have i nput.

CHAIR STOLTZE read from Article 12 - Crimnal Admnistration,
which was anended in 1994 to add victinms' rights. "Crimnal
adm nistration shall be based upon the follow ng: the need for
protecting the public, comunity condemmation of the offender,
the rights of victinms of crinmes, restitution from the offender
and the principle of reformation.™

11: 15: 54 AM
He commented that he has tried to take his direction from
Article 12 for the very reason that the state has failed in a

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- February 13, 2016



couple of areas. He said one of the biggest problens has been
failure to nmake restitution to victins and SB 91 provides for
ways to correct that. He added that another issue is helping
peopl e becone productive so they can "pay back."

CHAI R STOLTZE pointed out that the constitution also addresses
punitive and retributive neasures.

SENATOR COGHI LL used soci etal condemmation as an exanpl e.
CHAI R STOLTZE noted victins' rights is an evol ving change.

SENATOR COCGHILL said victinms' rights is a primary driver and the
state needs to do better toward seeking a just system

CHAI R STOLTZE added for both the offender and the victim

11:19: 08 AM
At ease.

11: 20: 44 AM

BRENDA STANFI LL, Victim Advocacy Representative, Al aska Crimna

Justice Comm ssion (ACJC), Fairbanks, Alaska, described her
experience on ACIC. She conplinmented the nenbers of ACIC for
their hard work and their open mnds. She explained that she
becanme involved with ACIC because the current system works for
no one and she realized that many of the crimnals in the system
were once young boys in a shelter she worked in. She concl uded
that the system was failing children and shelters did not have
the resources to provide services for children. She stated a
maj or concern is lack of prevention and treatnent.

11: 24: 09 AM
She suggested reallocating funds for treatnent prograns. She
opined that "W cannot crimnalize our way out of a social
issue.” She wished to see social issues that lead to crimna
behavi or addressed in order to help decrease the anount of
recidivism

She enphasized the need for rei nvest ment in pre-trial
assessments and community corrections. She said ACIC is excited
about getting better public safety out of dollars spent by
focusing on reinvestnent. She thanked Senator Coghill and his
staff for their work.

11:27: 43 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 13, 2016



CHAIR STOLTZE requested nore information about the costs of
rei nvest ment .

MS. STANFILL believed that there are three inportant conponents
to focus on: create a pre-trial services; open opportunities for
treatnment; and fund prevention services. She thought it would
cost between $5 mllion and $10 mllion.

CHAI R STOLTZE suggested the adm nistration address fiscal notes
to that effect. He said SB 91 is nore inportant and conplicated
than just a savings bill.

11: 31: 26 AM

RI CK  ALLEN, Director, Ofice of Public Advocacy (COPA),
Department of Administration, Palnmer, Al aska, provided input on
crimnal reform He noted that he was not a nenber of ACIC, but
attended several neetings. He addressed the high nunber of
peopl e being incarcerated in the United States and the novenent
to reevaluate how corrections noney is being spent. He believed
that SB 91 was consistent with the national trend.

He reported that OPA's work consists of 40 percent crimnal |aw
and 60 percent civil law, of which a large part is Child in Need
of Aid (CINA) cases. He said the goal is for parents to be able
to deal wth their own issues and to raise their own children.
He opined that government intervention is very expensive. He
asserted that SB 91 could help in the area of rehabilitation and
woul d provide major benefits. He noted that recidivismrates are
dropping due to the use of prograns such as those suggested in
SB 91. He predicted there would be a corresponding drop in CINA
situations, also.

11: 35: 28 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE asked about potenti al costs to OPA for
rei nvest ment prograns.

MR. ALLEN replied that putting a dollar figure on potential
costs was difficult, but noted that OPA has submtted a zero
fiscal note and did not expect a significant fiscal inpact. He
said his main focus is the human aspect and the best interest of
children and their famlies.

CHAIR STOLTZE pointed out that M. Allen is free to speak his
m nd because he was elected to a five-year term

MR. ALLEN corrected Chair Stoltze that his position is an
appoi ntment by the governor.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- February 13, 2016



11: 37: 31 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL commented that his primary intent for the bill
is not cost savings; but rather, public safety.

CHAI R STOLTZE mai nt ai ned that cost saving is a big driver.

SENATOR COGHI LL agreed, but said the focus is on how to do it
better.

He commented on rehabilitation saying that he did not know
whet her the governnent can ever rehabilitate anyone, but can
provi de avenues of accountability that neke people nore
productive and to "hold thent if it doesn't work.

CHAIR STOLTZE pointed out that the state has a constitutiona
charge to do so.

11:41:19 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL agreed. He addressed the sectional analysis that
shows the | egal nakeup of the bill:

Sections 1 - 17 deal with theft issues and are called offenses
agai nst property. Title 11, Chapter 46.

Sections 18 - 23 are offenses against public admnistration.
Title 11, Chapter 56.

Sections 24 - 29 are offenses against public order. Title 11,
Chapter 61.

Section 30 is an offense against public health and decency
(ganbling). Title 11, Chapter 66.

Sections 31 - 36 are offenses involving a controlled substance.
Title 11, Chapter 71.

Sections 37 & 38 deal with crimnal code procedure. Title 12
Chapt er 25.

Sections 39 - 49 deal with bail schedules. Title 12, Chapter 30.

Sections 50 - 73 deal with sentencing and probation. Title 12,
Chapt er 55.

Sections 74 - 78 deal with drivers licenses. Title 28, Chapter
15.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- February 13, 2016



Sections 79 - 83 deal wth offenses, accidents related to
al cohol, inhalants, and controlled substances inplied consent.
Title 28, Chapter 35.

Section 84 deals wth nunicipal governnment. Title 29, Chapter
10.

Section 85 & 86 deal w th municipal government penalties. Title
29, Chapter 25.

Section 87 - 90 deal wth probation, prisons, pardons, and
prisoners. Title 33, Chapter 05.

Section 91 deals wth pre-trail service prograns. Title 33,
Chapter 07.
Sections 92 - 125 deal with parole admnistration. Title 33,
Chapter 16.

Sections 126 & 127 deal with renmi ssion of sentences, executive
pardon, and clenmency - good tine. Title 33, Chapter 20.

Sections 128 - 131 deal with prison facilities and prisoners.
Title 33, Chapter 30.

Section 132 deals with garnishment of the PFD. Title 43, Chapter
23.

Section 133 deals with food stanps. Title 47, Chapter 27.

Sections 134 - 143 deal with court rule anmendnents, repeals of
crimnal procedure, repeals of statutes, indirect court rules,
and effective dates. Uncodified Law

11:46: 31 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE asked if any court rule anendnents were
controversi al .

SENATOR COGHILL replied that he did not know, but thought sone
m ght be. He noted the variety of subjects in the bill and said
SB 91 is a very conprehensive bill.

CHAI R STOLTZE voi ced appreciation for Senator Coghill's work.

11:48:11 AM
At ease

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 13, 2016



11:59: 23 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE called the commttee back to order. He noted that
the conmttee neeting was the first iteration of public
testimony on SB 91.

12: 00: 05 PM

MARLENE MOTO KARL, representing herself, Deering, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 91. She spoke of the responsibility
of parents regarding curfew violations and problens related to
Child Support. She shared a story about her son. She discussed
the inportance of <city ordinances. She said she wshed to
prevent those going to jail by mstake and suggested |job
prograns for those on probation.

12: 08: 21 PM

TARRI HARROLD- JONES, representing herself, Wasilla, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 91. She shared the benefits of her
private business of electronic nonitoring. She told several
stories about how her clients were helped by electronic
nmonitoring. She related the expense of transporting prisoners.

CHAI R STOLTZE stated that he | ooked forward to the Departnent of
Corrections' fiscal note.

12:11:48 PM

BUTCH MOORE, on behalf of hinmself and his wife, G ndy More,
Anchorage, Al aska, testified in support of SB 91. He thanked the
sponsor for his efforts on the bill. He noted there is now
federal support for the Alaska Safe Children's Act and rel ated
education. He said there is other avail able noney, too.

He suggested adding a definition of felony theft to Section 7 of

the bill. He said he net wth the person who killed his
daughter. He referred to the "good time" provisions in Section
126 of the bill and suggested that different consequences for

violent crine and sexual assault and rnurder should be provided.
He spoke of the prohibitions in place for his daughter's
nmurderer that were not upheld. He said court ordered conditions
of parole regarding alcohol restrictions nust be required in
order to get a new driver's license showing the restriction. He
al so suggested mandating nore tinely hearings and sentencing and
di sal | owi ng conti nuati ons.

12: 22: 19 PM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- February 13, 2016



CHAIR STOLTZ recalled that the Victins Advocacy organization is
advocating for the 120-day provision. He expressed synpathy for
t he Moore's | oss.

MR. MOCRE said his suggestions are an attenpt to prevent future
| oss. He reiterated his opinion about Section 126.

12:24: 50 PM

VICKI WALLNER, President, Stop Valley Thieves, WMat-Su Vall ey,
Al aska, testified in opposition to SB 91. She pointed out that
the driving force behind the Alaska Crimnal Justi ce
Comm ssion's Report was to reduce the cost of incarceration. She
said her group works from the ground up. She nmaintained that
crimnals are given many chances and their sentences are reduced
many times before they are convicted of a crine. Victins are
very upset about this and feel that there is no sense of
justice. She said there should be certainty in punishnment. She
said the bill lowers crines down to a citation and drug offenses
are being reclassified. She provided statistics on the increase
in crimes. She requested that the state get tough on crine.

12: 37: 31 PM

ANDREA ROBI NSON, representing herself, Juneau, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 91, especially re-investing the nobney saved
into prograns. She shared her history of drug use,
i ncarcerations, suicide attenpts, and recovery. She said she
graduated from Juneau Therapeutic Courts and expressed
appreciation for the Haven House in Juneau, which is giving her
a path toward getting her kids back

12: 40: 54 PM

SHAWN JESSIP 11, representing hinmself, Juneau, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 91. He shared his history of crinme and
incarceration. He said that he is currently attending UAS. He
said he is support of the reforns in SB 91.

SENATOR COGHI LL thanked him He asked if there is anything in SB
91 that will help M. Jessip in his journey.

MR. JESSIP said entering college saved his life.

12: 43: 42 PM

KARA NELSON, Director, Haven House, Juneau, Al aska, testified in
support of SB 91. She shared her experience with incarceration
and drug felonies and how that affected her incone and |ife. She
said she is now in recovery and everything discussed in the bil
relates to her. She concluded that it is a comunity-w de issue

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 13, 2016



and there are nmany supportive services, but it is necessary that
they coll aborate. She stressed that there needs to be recovery-
ready comunities.

12:49: 42 PM

CHRIS NETTLES, President, National Federation of |ndependent
Busi nesses, Anchorage, Al aska, testified in opposition to SB 91.
He spoke against the inflation-proofing of property stolen at

the felony theft/m sdeneanor level. He spoke of the problens
with the rise in crinmes that inpact businesses. He thought the
bill encouraged nore theft because of raising the property val ue

threshold to $2,000. He said police don't typically respond to
m sdemeanor -1 evel theft.

CHAIR STOLTZ said the threshold was changed in 2014. He asked
what the discussion was then.

MR. NETTLES thought they agreed on $750 at that tine. He shared
exanpl es of recent sophisticated thefts.

12:54: 39 PM

DARRYL JONES, Cor porate Counsel, Pi oneer Peak Mbonitoring,
Wasilla, Alaska, testified on SB 91. He spoke of his history as
a defense attorney. He explained the process of pre-trial

defense hearings and the process of setting bail. He said to
spend $3.9 mllion to do an analysis on a bail proposal is a
waste of tinme and noney. He listed the problens related to

electronic nonitoring. He said he is opposed to the 120-day
[imt.

1:02: 06 PM

TERRI A WALTERS, representing herself, Palner, Al aska, testified
on SB 91. She spoke of her personal story, her history as an
of fender, and her work with prisoners. She said she supports
several things in the bill. She addressed the inequities of
sentencing and she requested changes in sentencing for non-
violent crinmes and an increase in treatnent prograns. She also
requested that re-entry be coupled with re-education. She said
those who have transitioned back to the community nust be
included in decision-making. She suggested |ooking at other
countries for solutions and reviewing the third-party custodian
regul ati ons.

1:07:17 PM

KIM WH TAKER, Menber, R E. A L. About Addiction, Anchorage,
Al aska, testified in support of SB 91. She related the story of
her daughter's addiction issues. She suggested that treatnent

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- February 13, 2016



for addicts be included in the bill. She shared how she is
trying to help addicts and said there should be better options
for detox. She said the current system is not working. She
concluded that SB 91 will provide rehabilitation options.

1:11:20 PM

MAUDE BLAIR, President, Al aska Federation of Natives, Anchorage,
Al aska, testified in support of SB 91. She shared several
probl ens that Al aska Natives experience with incarceration. She
requested treating the root causes that are getting people into
trouble, rather than just punishing them

1:12: 22 PM
ATHENA Sl NGSAAS, representing herself, Anchor age, Al aska,
testified on SB 91. She said the bill is a step in the right

direction. She shared her experience of receiving a felony DW
She said the law was changed and resulted in reactivating DW
charges that had already been served. She spoke of the need for
treatment progranms and revi sing expungenent and cl enmency | aws.

1:16:43 PM

M KE COONS, representing hinself, Palnmer, Alaska, testified on
SB 91. He maintained that the crimnal justice systemis broken
and sentences don't fit the crime. Many prisoners are let out
early to reduce crowding in prisons. He spoke in favor of
treatment plans. He said those with firearns sentences should be
turned over to the federal governnent. He said citizen safety is
t he nost inportant.

1: 20: 55 PM

TI MOTHY HALE, representing hinmself, Palnmer, Al aska, testified in
support of SB 91. He focused on problens with Sections 75 and 76
- driving privileges of felony DU's. He suggested they be
changed so those who have served their tine are allowed to drive
agai n.

CHAIR STOLTZE said there are many case laws regarding this
section and the conmttee would continue to look at it.

1:23: 38 PM

DELI CE CALCOTE, representing herself, Sutton, Alaska, testified
in support of SB 91. She shared her extensive work history. She
spoke of individual and collective rights and PL 280. She
rel ated her personal experience with tribal famly nenbers on
probation and the probl ens they encountered.

1: 28: 25 PM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- February 13, 2016



HELEN SI MMONDS, representing herself, Barrow, Alaska, testified
in support of SB 91. She shared her son's story of nental
i1l ness and Medi caid pl acenents.

1:32:41 PM
BARBARA CHALENDER, representing herself, Anchorage, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 91. She spoke of her son's addiction
and death from heroin and the need for treatnment progranms. She
said there are no reentry prograns available and prison is not
t he answer.

1:36:01 PM

M CHAEL JEFFERY, representing hinmself, Barrow, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 91. He shared his history as a judge in Barrow.
He highlighted prisoner in-reach prograns in the bill and spoke
in favor of them He spoke of those with cognitive inpairnents
needi ng speci al treatnent.

1:39: 51 PM

M KE LUNDE, Menber, Fairbanks Wellness Court System Fairbanks,
Al aska, testified in support of SB 91. He expressed appreciation
for the Wellness Courts and said that 82 percent of graduates
from Well ness Courts do not reoffend. He requested a change to
the driver's license penalties. He ended with a quote by M chael
Jor dan.

1:44: 30 PM

DONNA BALDW N, representing herself, Juneau, Alaska, testified
in support of SB 91. She spoke as a recovery coach and said the
bill will nmake a difference in people's lives. She said she is
glad the stigma of addiction is going away because people are
talking about it. She thanked the commttee for hearing the
bill.

1:46: 44 PM

NATHAN LOCKWOCD, representing hinself, Juneau, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 91. He spoke of the problens people have with
access to resources for substance abuse. He said he is in favor
of reinvesting in those resources. He naintained that the bil
will reduce recidivism by providing tools to address substance
abuse. He suggested that noney will be saved by reducing |ow
| evel offenses down from m sdeneanors to violations. He also
suggested that the cap of 120 days for electronic nonitoring
should be changed, as should the rules regarding |oss of
i censes.

1: 50: 53 PM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -23- February 13, 2016



ETHAN KNUTHSON, representing hinself, Juneau, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 91. He shared his personal story of addiction
and inprisonnment. He said he ended up in a therapeutic conmunity
after having the opportunity to enroll in a nethadone treatnent
program in Washington. He said that in Southeast Al aska few
physicians are available to prescribe the nedication needed by
addicts in order to live. He stressed the inportance for
treatment progranms, re-entry prograns, and education.

1:56:49 PM

CARA DURR, Director of Public Engagenent, Food Bank of Al aska
Anchorage, Al aska, testified in support of SB 91. She addressed
the bill's repealing drug felons' ability to receive
Suppl enent al Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) benefits.
States have the authority to opt out of this federal provision
Al aska is one of seven states that still upholds this lifetine
ban. She encouraged reduction of recidivism by increasing and
i mproving re-entry prograns, including food stanp benefits.

1:58:28 PM

KATHLEEN VAN VOORHI' S, Director, Food Bank of Alaska, Anchorage
Al aska, testified in support of SB 91. She said there is a 33
percent increase in the need for food resources, especially for
those who conme out of prison. She suggested that lifting the
SNAP food ban would benefit the comunity as a whole, would
| oner recidivismcosts, and would bring in nore federal dollars.

2:00: 14 PM

PATRI CIA  LANE, representing hersel f, Anchor age, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 91. She shared her personal story of
sobriety and the difficulty of not being able to have a license.
She described situations where she needed to drive. She said she
has conpl eted the Therapeutic Court Program

2:03: 54 PM

HELEN  TRAI NCR, representing hersel f, Anchor age, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 91. She spoke of favor of the
Wel I ness Court program and descri bed how the program hel ped her
son. She said it is so inportant to change the driver's |icense
provi sion. She referred to Oregon's HB 3025, which gives people
a fairer chance to get a job

2:07: 05 PM

W LLI AM DI CKERSON, Al ummi, Alaska Therapeutic Court, Anchorage
Al aska, testified in support of SB 91. He spoke highly of the
Wel | ness Court programand all it does.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 24- February 13, 2016



2:09: 13 PM

LANCE HANES, Alumi, Alaska Therapeutic Court, Anchorage
Al aska, testified in support of SB 91. He shared that he was
unable to get on electronic nonitoring in 2013. He spoke in
favor of reinstating drivers' Jlicenses and he addressed the
benefits of the interlock device. He spoke in favor of
Therapeutic Courts and the support they provide.

2:12:39 PM

ERNIE GOVEZ, Alumi, Alaska Therapeutic Court, Anchorage
Al aska, testified in support of SB 91. He spoke of how
Therapeutic Court changed his life and how it saves noney. He
requested to have nore detox and treatnent prograns.

2:15:18 PM

JAMES  KRUGVAN, representing hi nsel f, Anchor age, Al aska,
testified in opposition to SB 91. He nmintained that the bil
does not protect the public from dangerous crimnals. He said he
is opposed to lack of punishnent for crimnals. He predicted
that the frequency of crime will rise due to SB 91.

2:18: 52 PM

CATHLEEN MCLAUGHLI N, Di rector, Partners Reentry Center,
Anchorage, Al aska, testified in support of SB 91. She descri bed
the pre-release planning held in the bill. She provided an
exanpl e of its success.

2:20: 26 PM

GRACE HERRI NGTQN, Enpl oyee, Partners Reentry Center, Anchorage
Al aska, testified in support of SB 91. She shared how well pre-
rel ease support is working and said it is a big resource.

2:21:51 PM

VINCE HOLTON, Executive Director, Alaska Mnitoring & Drug
Testing LLC, Fairbanks, Al aska, testified in support of SB 91.
He expl ained that the difference between a private conpany and a
program from the Departrment of Corrections (DOC) is that DOC
nmonitors 24 hours a day and has the best equi pnment. He described
what DOC nonitoring entails. He referred to HB 15 and pointed
out that DOC guidelines for house arrest prograns have not yet
been established. He suggested using private conpanies in order
to save the state noney. He stressed that pre-trial services in
t he bill are m ni mal and t he 120- day limt needs
reconsi derati on.

CHAIR STOLTZE agreed nore work needs to be done with those
conducting the nonitoring prograns.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -25- February 13, 2016



SENATOR COGHILL related that the comm ssion recomended pre-
trail service because accountability is inportant. He said he
prefers private industry do the work. He agreed that it is
costly and said it is open to discussion.

MR. HOLTON could see the need for regulating conpanies to nake
it work.

2:28:01 PM

MARY NANUWAK, representing herself, Bethel, testified in support
of SB 91, with changes. She suggested pro bono work could be
done and charges could be pooled together in order to save tine,
energy, and noney. She thought the pre-trail agreenent and
education should be mandatory in order to reduce recidivism She
al so said there should be treatnent prograns.

CHAI R STOLTZE hel d public testinony open.

He said cost savings are inportant, but there are other
considerations to think about, such as re-investnment of those
savings in other areas. He noted the grow ng problem of heroin
addiction and the high failure rate for treatnment. He did not
agree that many drug offenders are being incarcerated, rather,
that they are crimnals with a drug probl em

2: 34: 55 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL thanked all the testifiers. He said that keeping
peopl e safe and public condemmation for crime are all within the

realmof the bill. He noted it is the first hearing of the bill.
He said he will continue to ask whether the state is holding
crimnals accountable and to carry forward the commssion's
recomrendati ons. The legislature will work out policy calls for

keeping people safe and keeping costs low. There are human
rights on both the victims side and the crimnal's side to
consi der.

[SB 91 was held in committee.]
2:38:22 PM
There being no further business to conme before the commttee

Chair Stoltze adjourned the Senate Affairs Commttee at 2:38
p. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 26- February 13, 2016



